



# به ریاست غضنفر بانک!

موضوع: تائيدي اساسنامه بانک

به جواب مكتوب شماره 32 مؤرخ 1399/03/01 شما چنين نگاشته ميشود:

اساسنامه تعدیل شده آن بانک که به زبان انگلسی ذریعه مکتوب فوق الذکر به این اداره مواصلت ورزیده بود، بعد از مرور و بررسی از جانب این اداره منظور گردید.

اینک یک کاپی آن که از طرف این اداره مهر شده است، در قید 23 ورق جهت اجراآت بعدی شما در ضمیمه مکتوب هذا به آن بانک ارسال است و در صورت هر نوع تغییرات، د افغانستان بانک را رسماً اطلاع دهید تا اجراآت لازم بعدی صورت گیرد.

ضمناً هدایت داده میشود تا هرچه عاجل یک نسخه اساسنامه متذکره را به یکی از زبان های ملی کشور همراه با تصویب هیئت نظار خویش جهت ثبت به این اداره ارسال نمایید.

همچنان هدایت داده میشود تا اساسنامه هذا را در وزارت محترم صنعت و تجارت در بخش مربوطه نیز راجستر نموده و از اجراآت بعدی در زمینه این اداره را در جریان قرار دهید.

سرپرست و معاون اول د افغانستان بانک

13/08/99

کاپی به:

مدیریت مقررات آمریت عمومی نظارت از بانکها؛ و

مدیریت اطمینان کیفیت آمریت عمومی نظارت از بانکها.



42308 32<sub>5</sub> 21-5-2020 21/May/2020

به ریاست محترم د افغانستان بانک! قابل توجه کمیته مرور اساسنامه بانک ها!

موضوع تعديل اساسنامه غضنفربانك

به تعقیب مکتوب شماره 656-FIN-2019 مورخ FIN-12/10/1398خویش احترامانه نگاشته میشود، اینکه غضنفربانک اساسنامه خویش را تعدیل و غرض مرور و کسب منظوری ضم مکتوب هذا به اداری محترم شما ارسال می نماید.

از همکاری های همیشگی تان سپاسگز اریم.





# Articles of Association Ghazanfar Bank Kabul Afghanistan 2020







# Contents

Definitions:	
Clause 1: Constitution	2
Legal Status:	2
1.1 Objectives:	2
1.2 Activities:	2
Clause 2: Name of the company:	3
2.1 Head Office and Branches:	3
2.2 Details of Incorporators / Shareholders:	4
Clause 3: Capital	4
3.1 Reduction of Capital	4
Clause 4: Share	4
4.1 Number and types of shares:	4
4.2 Assignment of Shares:	5
4.3 Assignment Procedure:	5
Clause 5: Administrative Structure of the Bank	7
5.1 General Assembly:	7
Meetings of the General Assembly:	7
Duties and Powers:	8
5.2 Board of Supervisor:	8
Board of Supervisor's Structure	8
Board of Supervisors' Appointment and Composition	9
Qualification of Board of Supervisors	9
Duties and Powers of Board of Supervisors	10
5.3.1 Audit Committee	12
5.3.2 Nomination Committee:	13
5.3.3 Risk Management Committee	14
Board of Management's Roles, Responsibilities, and Qualifications	14
866 Sher Pur Main Rd. Kabul-Afghanistan 5.3.4 Compensation and Remun@at%at@Contact   1.20 (0)2021.05555	160
	1 1 1 1 1 1 1





# غضنفر بانک GHAZANFAR BANK

5.4. Islamic Banking Window	16
Clause 6: Fiscal Year Reports	17
6.1 Net Profit for Fiscal Year:	19
6.2 Legal Reserves:	19
6.3 Profit Distribution (Capital Distribution):	19
Clause 7: Dissolution of the Bank	19
7.1 Liquidation	19
7.2 Litigation	20
Clause 8: Laws and Regulation	20





#### **Definitions:**

- In these Articles, unless the context or subject matter otherwise requires:
  - o "Clauses" means these Article(s) as originally framed or as from time to time altered in accordance with law.
  - o "Bank" means "GHAZANFAR BANK"
  - "Banking Law" means the Banking Law Enacted in Afghanistan or any modification or re- enactment thereof for the time being in force.
  - o "Board" means the Supervisory Board constituted under these Articles at which a quorum is present.
  - o "Company Law" means the Company Law Enacted in Afghanistan or any modification or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force.
  - o "Directors" mean the members of the Supervisory Board.
  - o "Fit and Proper Person" means a person who in the judgment of Da Afghanistan Bank is of honesty, trustworthiness, fairness, integrity and has ability to make sound and effective decision in his personal, financial and business activities and possesses good skills and experience for conducting the intended activities of the bank.
  - o "Dividend "means a part of the company's net earnings that are distributed to Shareholders in accordance with the rights determined for each kind and class of shares.
  - o "Government" means Government of the Islamic Republic of Afghanistan.
  - o "Month" means calendar month according to the Afghanistan Calendar.
  - o "Office" means the registered Office of the Bank.
  - "Register" means, unless the context otherwise requires, the register of Shareholders to be kept pursuant to Companies Law.
  - o "Seal" means the common or official seal of the Bank.
  - "Secretary" includes any person appointed from time to time to perform the duties of Secretary to the Supervisory Board.
  - "Special Resolution" means special resolution of the Bank as defined in the Companies Law.
  - o "DAB" means Da Afghanistan Bank (Central Bank of Islamic Republic of Afghanistan)
  - o "Islamic Banking" means a bank which operates in accordance with Islamic Shariah.
  - "Conventional Bank" means bank operating in accordance with traditional banking practice.
  - "Control" means any situation in which, a person alone or acting in concert with one or more other persons: holds beneficial ownership of at least 50% of any category of voting



shares or Capital of an enterprise; has the power to elect a majority of the board of supervisors, or any similar, Body, of an enterprise; or has the ability to exert a dominant influence over the management or policies of the enterprise; or Has the Power to issue, based on a custom or formal or informal arrangement,

- Instructions or directions to a majority of the members of the board of
- Supervisors of an enterprise, or shareholders beneficially owning at least 50% of
- Any category of voting shares or capital of the enterprise.
- o "Branch Office" means a dependent part of a bank where all or some banking Activities are conducted;

#### **Clause 1: Constitution**

Ghazanfar Bank is established in March 2009, being licensed by Central bank of Afghanistan. The Bank is promoted by well reputed and leading Business Group of Afghanistan "Ghazanfar Group", with its Head Office in Kabul having Branches across Afghanistan.

## Legal Status:

Ghazanfar Bank is registered as Limited Liability Company under license number **D-29098** with Ministry of Commerce erstwhile AISA

**1.1 Objectives:** Being engaging in the business of receiving money deposits or other repayable funds from the public and making credits for its own benefit and all such activities as are lawfully associated with the functions of a Bank, and includes Islamic banking & Conventional banking

#### 1.2 Activities:

- 1. receiving money deposits in the form of demand deposits, or other types of deposit or other repayable funds, bearing interest or not;
- 2. extending credits whether secured or not by collateral or liens, including:
  - Extending consumer and mortgage credit.
  - financing of commercial transactions, including purchasing negotiable instruments at:
  - discount with or without recourse;
  - factoring, with or without recourse; and
  - financial leasing services;
- 3. buying and selling for its own account or for account of customers:
  - money market instruments (including bills of exchange, promissory notes and certificates of deposit); foreign currencies; precious metals and precious stones; exchange and interest

Or executive



rate instruments; stocks, bonds and other securities, in accordance with provisions of the law and regulations of Da Afghanistan Bank;

- forward contracts, swap agreements, futures, options, and other derivatives relating to currencies;
- 4. entering into contingent commitments, including guarantees and letters of credit, for its own benefit and for the benefit of customers;
- 5. providing clearing, settlement and transfer services for money, securities, and payment instruments (including checks; credit, debit and other payment cards; travelers' checks; and bank drafts, wire transfers, and preauthorized debits and credits);
- 6. money brokering;
- 7. safekeeping and administration of valuables, including securities; providing services as portfolio manager of securities or as financial adviser or as financial agent;
- 8. providing financial information and credit reference services, including general market economy information;
- 9. issuing electronic money;
- 10. providing credit-related insurance to borrowers in connection with credit granted by the bank;
- 11. Any other activity lawfully associated with the business of Banking.

# Clause 2: Name of the company:

"GHAZANFAR BANK"

#### 2.1 Head Office and Branches:

As of December 2019, Ghazanfar Bank has 14 Branches all over Afghanistan out of which 6 are located in Kabul and the rest in major Provinces of Afghanistan.





## 2.2 Details of Incorporators / Shareholders:

77.	Carniens No	Gazziñente isato (z. planie nestigazzioea)	AUDITESS	Norden de Sieurs		-Amount of Slaves (APA)	% or Slepes. fight
1	1	Mohammad Yousuf Ghazanfar	Kabul, Afghanistan	36,743	10,000	367,430,000	29%
2	2	Mohammad Ismail Ghazanfar	Kabul, Afghanistan	36,743	10,000	367,430,000	29%
3	3	Mohammad Ibrahim Ghazanfar	Kabul, Afghanistan	36,743	10,000	367,430,000	29%
4	4	Mohammad Osman Ghazanfar	Kabul, Afghanistan	16,471	10,000	164,710,000	13%
		Total Shares		126,700		1,267,000,000	100%

# Clause 3: Capital

The initial Authorized Capital of the Bank was AFN 550,000,000 divided into 55,000 shares of AFN 10,000/- each. The entire Authorized Capital was subscribed and paid in full on 03.03.2009.

The current Authorized/Paid up Capital of the bank as on 21.5.2020 is AFN 1,267,000,000/-.

# 3.1 Reduction of Capital

During the currency period till date no such reduction of Capital has taken place. However, if so requires bank may do so as per the guidelines of Central Bank of Afghanistan (DAB).

#### Clause 4: Share

The entire shares are subscribed and paid in full by the aforesaid shareholders.

4.1 Number and types of shares: Bank can issue equity shares within the ambit of authorized capital



**4.2 Assignment of Shares:** Bank can assign share to any party subject to the prevalent law of the Central Bank

### 4.3 Assignment Procedure:

- a. Assignment means transfer of some or all rights and obligations to another person through a written agreement. To be effective, an assignment must contain parties with legal capacity, consideration, consent and legality of object. The assignment shall not be considered to be completed until a duly filled in and executed form as per specimen given below is furnished by the assignor in favor of the assignee.
- b. Further, the assignment in order to be effective shall be subject to approval by the Da Afghanistan Bank.





"Annexure A"

Specimen of Deed of Assignment of Shares

THIS ASSIGNMENT is made on this	/wife of, resident "the Assignor") of the one part, and			
THE DEED OF ASSIGNMENT WITNESSES: That in consideration of the sum of AFS				
Assignor	Assignee			
Witness:	Witness:			

- a. Exercise of the Preferential Right: Shareholders have voting rights corresponding to their holding of shares of capital stock of the bank. Each shareholder will exercise his or her voting rights at the General Assembly personally or through official agent (Proxy) which is introduced in writing.
- b. Transfer of Shares: Subject to the provision of the Banking Law, no transfer of the shares shall be registered unless a proper instrument of transfer duly stamped and executed by the transferor and the transferee has been delivered to the Bank together with the Certificate or Certificates of shares. The instrument of transfer of any share shall be signed both by the transferor and transferee, and shall contain the name and address both of the transferor and transferee and the transferor shall be deemed to

866 Sher Pur Main Rd. Kabul-Afghanistan ★ +93 (0)202101111
★ +93 (0)202105555 info@ghzanfarbank.com | www.ghazanfarbank.com



- c. Remain the holder of such share until the name of the transferee is entered in the Register in respect thereof.
  - d. Debts and Liabilities of the Company
  - O Power to borrow: The Board may, from time to time at their discretion, raise/borrow or secure the payment of, any sum or sums of money or make any arrangement for financing for the purposes of the bank.

#### Clause 5: Administrative Structure of the Bank

- General Assembly (Shareholders)
- Board of Supervisor
- Audit Committee
- Risk Management Committee
- Management Board
- Committees under Board of Supervisors
  - Nomination Committee
  - Remuneration / Compensation Committee
- Islamic Banking Window

#### 5.1 General Assembly:

The General Assembly of the bank is constituted from the Shareholders of the bank.

## Meetings of the General Assembly:

- **a.** At least one regular session of the General Assembly shall be held each year after the completion of the external audit of the balance sheet and financial statements of the bank for the preceding financial year, no later than 3 months after the end of that financial year.
- **b.** Extraordinary sessions of the General Assembly may be convened at the request of the Board of Supervisors, the Board of Management, a shareholder or shareholders individually or together holding 20 percent or more of total voting rights, or Da Afghanistan Bank.
- c. Written notice of the date, place and time of each session of the General Assembly, together with the agenda for that session, shall be sent to the shareholders at least one month in advance. In urgent cases such notice may be given seven days in advance.

866 Sher Pur Main Rd. Kabul-Afghanistan

+93 (0)202101111 +93 (0)202105555
info@ghzanfarbank.com | www.ghazanfarbank.com



However, no decisions shall be made on issues that are not on the agenda. In case of urgent matters, notice can be sent by electronic mode and voting can also take place through electronic mode. However, in the subsequent session of the General Assembly the decisions taken by electronic mode should be confirmed.

- **d.** Decisions of the General Assembly should be written and signed by shareholders and Secretary only. However, in case of urgent matters voting can take place through postal ballot electronic mode.
- e. Shareholders should ensure that effective and appropriate secretarial functions exist.

#### **Duties and Powers:**

- 1. To adopt the charter of the bank and amendments thereto;
- 2. To adopt the by-laws of the bank and amendments thereto, provided that the General Assembly may delegate authority to the Board of Supervisors to perform these functions, and may require that any adoption, amendment or repeal of a bylaw be subject to approval of the General Assembly;
- 3. To appoint and to dismiss the members of the Board of Supervisors and determine remuneration of its members;
- 4. To adopt increases in the authorized capital of the bank and to determine the terms and conditions on which shares of the bank may be issued;
- 5. To approve the annual reports and financial statements of the bank, upon the recommendation of the Board of Supervisors of the bank;
- 6. To decide on the sale, merger, amalgamation, dissolution and closure of the bank;
- 7. To appoint bank's external audit firm which is authorized by DAB, taking into account the recommendation of the Board of Supervisors;
- 8. To establish and dissolve bank's subsidiaries, representative offices and branch offices.

# 5.2 Board of Supervisor:

# **Board of Supervisor's Structure**

- a. The Board of Supervisors of the bank should define appropriate governance structures and practices for its own work, and put in place the means for such practices to be followed and periodically reviewed for ongoing effectiveness.
- b. The Board of Supervisors should structure itself in terms of leadership, size and the use of committees so as to effectively carry out its oversight role and other responsibilities. This includes ensuring that the Board has the time and means to cover all necessary subjects in sufficient depth and have a robust discussion of issues.

866 Sher Pur Main Rd. Kabul-Afghanistan

+93 (0)202101111 + +93 (0)202105555
info@ghzanfarbank.com | www.ghazanfarbank.com



- c. The chair of the Board of Supervisors plays a crucial role in the proper functioning of the Board of Supervisors. The chair provides leadership to the board and is responsible for its effective overall functioning, including maintaining a relationship of trust with board members. The chair should possess the requisite experience, competencies and personal qualities in order to fulfill these responsibilities. The chair should ensure that board decisions are taken on a sound and well informed basis. The chair should encourage and promote critical discussion and ensure that dissenting views can be freely expressed and discussed within the decision-making process. The chair should dedicate sufficient time to the exercise of his or her responsibilities.
- d. To promote checks and balances, the chair of the Board of Supervisors should be an independent or non-executive board member.

## Board of Supervisors' Appointment and Composition

- a. Board of Supervisors is elected by the General Assembly of the institution, and majority of its members shall not be shareholders, management or employees of the Bank. Shareholders, whether legal entities or natural persons, may appoint representatives to the Board but these representatives shall not constitute a majority of Board members
- b. The Board of Supervisors consists of minimum of three and maximum of nine members, elected by the General Assembly for the period of four years and they can be reappointed **Board of Supervisors elects one of its members as the chairman.**
- c. At least two-third members along with chairman of Board of Supervisors should be independent members. Bank shareholders, their representatives and close relatives cannot constitute majority of the Board of Supervisors.
- d. A member of the Board of Supervisors can have as much shares individually in his own name in a bank or in subsidiary of the bank that Da Afghanistan bank has determined. Members of Board of Supervisors who have such shares in the bank can get their remuneration or salary in conformity with policies and procedure of the Board of Supervisors and Article 49.3 of Banking Law of Afghanistan.
- e. If a seat of Board of Supervisors becomes vacant, the remaining members should fill the vacant position by designating a temporary member until the next General Assembly of shareholders.

# Qualification of Board of Supervisors

- a. A person shall be eligible to serve as a member of the Board of Supervisors of a bank if
  - He/she is a Fit and Proper Person and meets conditions stipulated under Article 58 of the Banking Law of Afghanistan;
  - He/she is not a public (government) employee other than in a teaching capacity.





b. In addition to above requirements, every member of Board of Supervisors of a bank must have a suitable professional background via previous work in business, accounting, law, academia or supervision of financial institutions. At least one member of the Board of Supervisors shall have experience in banking, accounting or financial management in order to facilitate that person's membership on the Audit Committee:

c. Other requirements and details of the qualification of Board of Supervisors will be provided through circulars of Da Afghanistan Bank from time to time.

## **Duties and Powers of Board of Supervisors**

#### a. The Boards of the Supervisors have the following Duties and Powers

- 1. Convene each session of the General Assembly and adopt the agenda for each session;
- 2. Approve the bank's organizational structure;
- 3. Make decisions regarding the establishment and dissolving of subsidiaries, branch offices and representative offices of the bank;
- 4. Appoint, dismiss and determine the remuneration of the members of Board of management of the bank;
- 5. Oversee the performance of the bank's Board of Management;
- 6. Approve the bank's business strategy and annual budget;
- Approve policies for the conduct of operation performance, including the bank's risk
  management policy, dealing with conflict of interest and issuance of guidance to board of
  Management for implementation of those policies;
- 8. Determine the conditions under which credits may be granted by bank employees, and which credits require approval of the Board of Supervisors;
- 9. Ensure the establishment, functionality, appropriateness, adherence of DAB law and regulations and adequacy of internal controls and risk management for the bank;
- 10. Ensure the integrity of the bank's financial reporting, including financial reporting to Da Afghanistan Bank;
- 11. Ensure that appropriate Internal Audit function is established;
- 12. Make recommendations to the General Assembly on matters requiring shareholder approval;
- 13. Make recommendations to the General Assembly concerning appointment of the external audit firm for the bank;
- 14. Ensure execution of bank's annual external audit, which includes the auditor's opinion of the truth and accuracy of the bank's financial statements;
- 15. Make decisions concerning capital distributions, subject to requirements of Law and regulations of Da Afghanistan Bank, and what amount of the net profit of the bank shall be transferred to bank reserve;







- 16. Making decisions in accordance with the requirements of this law and related regulations regarding distribution of capital and net profit of bank which is determined as reserve fund.
- 17. Immediately inform Da Afghanistan Bank in writing, or require the Board of Management to do so, of any deterioration in the financial situation of the bank, or danger of such deterioration, and any other facts that may materially affect the financial situation of the bank, and in particular if the bank becomes undercapitalized;
- 18. Ensure implementations of directives and instructions of Da Afghanistan Bank
- 19. Decide on other matters placed in the competence of the Board of Supervisors by the bank's charter or by-laws
- 20. The chairperson of Board of Supervisors is responsible to introduce members of Board of Management to DAB for approval in no more than three months after the positions becomes vacant.
- b. The Board of Supervisors is ultimately responsible, and is accountable to all stakeholders (including the General Assembly, depositors, and DAB) for the conduct of the bank's

Affairs and condition. Although the board members cannot guarantee success, they are expected to supervise bank operations to ensure that they reflect sound planning, are effectively governed by comprehensive policies and internal control procedures, and are administered by competent management. While the Board of Supervisors may depend upon the Management Board's technical, industrial, and managerial expertise to run the bank's day-to-day operations, the board members remain responsible for ensuring that those operations are properly controlled, comply with the policies adopted by the Board of Supervisors and applicable laws and notifications, and are consistent with sound banking practices.

In meeting its overall commitment to the bank's General Assembly, depositors, and

Community, the Board of Supervisors must:

- Ensure competent management;
- Ensure that appropriate plans and policies are in place;
- Monitor operations, ensure adequate internal controls and compliance with laws and decisions;
- Oversee financial performance of the bank;
- Prevent Conflicts of Interest;





#### 5.3.1 Audit Committee

- a. Audit Committee could be separate from Board of Supervisors or could be a sub-committee of the Board of Supervisors with necessary expertise and independence.
- b. Bank's Board of Supervisors may create Audit Committee from its majority independent members or such other eligible persons who are composed of odd numbers that have not less than 3 and more than 9 members after seeking necessary DAB approval before its creation. At least one member of this committee must have knowledge and skill of banking, accounting or financial management.
- c. In case the Audit Committee is separate from Board of Supervisors, before a bank appoints a person to serve on its Audit Committee, the bank must propose the issue to Da Afghanistan Bank as well as submit documents pursuant to Article 12 of Banking Law of Afghanistan, during an application for a banking license and/or during subsequent reappointment, and shall obtain Da Afghanistan Bank's authorization.
- d. The Board of Supervisors of each bank must nominate chairman and members of the Audit Committee to DAB for approval.
- e. None of the members of the Audit Committee may be members of the Management Board or employees of the bank or an enterprise in the same group as the bank.
- The Audit Committee of the bank shall:
  - Review the annual financial statements of the bank before the statements are approved by the Board of Supervisors:
  - Review such other financial reports of the bank as the Audit Committee deems necessary;
  - Review and evaluate the bank's policies regarding internal controls, and make recommendations to the Board of Supervisors regarding their approval;
  - Oversee the implementation and maintenance of the bank's internal controls by the bank's Board of Management;
  - Periodically review the effectiveness of the bank's internal controls with the head of the bank's internal audit function and Board of Management;
  - Periodically evaluate the effectiveness of the bank's internal control systems report, its findings to the Board of Supervisors, and recommend any changes it deems necessary;
  - Recommend to the Board of Supervisors an audit firm to conduct the bank's external audit;
  - Meet with the bank's external auditors to discuss the annual audit of the bank's financial statements; and
  - Perform other tasks, related or incidental to the above, as determined by the Boardof Supervisors.

12



- g. Audit Committee must convene at least once every three months. Audit committee quorum completes by presence of two-third of all members and, valid decisions are taken by majority of present members. Members cannot abstain from voting except in case of Conflict of Interest.
- h. Audit Committee can request Board of Supervisors meeting only to consider any matter of disquiet to the committee.
- i. Audit Committee can hire its legal specialists and auditors related to its field.
- j. In addition, Audit Committee should:
  - Supervise the work of internal auditors and oversee their relationship with external auditors;
  - Ensure independence, objectivity and qualifications of internal and external auditors;
  - Review periodically the remuneration and performance of the external auditors and ensure a periodic change of senior audit partner;
  - Ensure appropriate functionality of internal audit function;
  - Receive and review internal audit reports and draw attention of the Board of Management and Board of Supervisors to any material matters;
  - Engage external advice as required.
  - Review the external auditor's letter to bank's management (containing recommendations on internal control issues) and consider the adequacy of the Board of Management's response.
  - Ensure compliance with regulatory requirements and internal procedures through reviewing reports from the Board of Management and internal and external auditors.

Due attention must be paid to breaches of regulations, related party transactions and Litigations.

#### 5.3.2 Nomination Committee:

- a. As per Banking Law of Afghanistan and Corporate Governance Regulation of Da Afghanistan Bank (DAB) Ghazanfar bank has established a Nomination Committee. Every member of the Nomination Committee shall be appointed to hold office until the next annual General Assembly, following that member's appointment, and shall be eligible for reappointment.
- b. If a member of the Nomination Committee resigns, ceases to be a director or for another reason ceases to be a member of the Nomination Committee and this results in abreact of any requirement prescribed under paragraph (a) above, the Board of Supervisors shall, within 3 months of that event, appoint such number of new members as may be necessary to certify the composition of the Nomination Committee in accordance with that requirement.



## 5.3.3 Risk Management Committee

a. The Board of Supervisors of the bank has establish a risk management committee, the Majority of which consist of independent members of the Board of Supervisors. At Least one member of the risk management committee has and shall have expertise in risk management and banking.

# Board of Management's Roles, Responsibilities, and Qualifications General Principles

- a) Under the direction and oversight of the Board of Supervisors, the Board of Management shall carry out and manage the bank's activities in a manner consistent with the business strategy, risk appetite, and other policies approved by the Board of Supervisors.
- b) Board of Management shall consist of a core group of individuals responsible and accountable to the Board of Supervisors for the sound and prudent day-to-day Management of the bank.
- c) The organization, procedures and decision-making of Board of Management should be clear and transparent and designed to promote effective management of the bank. This includes clarity on the role, authority and responsibility of the various positions within Board of Management, including that of the CEO.

# Appointment and Membership

- a. The Board of Management of Ghazanfar Bank should be consist of five members, and shall include:
- 1. Chief Executive Officer,
- 2. Deputy Chief Executive Officer;
- 3. Chief Operating Officer, Chief Finance Officer and Chief Credit Officer;
- 4. Such other officials as may be specified in the bank's charter or by-laws or deemed Appropriate by the Board of Supervisors.
  - b. Before the bank appoints a person to serve on its Board of Management, the bank must: Propose the issue to Da Afghanistan Bank as well as submit documents pursuant to Article 12 of Banking Law, during an application for a banking license or during subsequent appointments, and shall obtain Da Afghanistan Bank's approval.
  - c. Members of the Board of Management of a bank are eligible to serve for four consecutive Years and shall be eligible for reappointment.



- d. Members of Board of Management shall be full-time administrators or employees of the Bank. Each member of the Board of Management does not necessarily need to have expert knowledge or expertise in every area of bank management, but should be generally familiar with each relevant area, in addition to having detailed knowledge of their own area of responsibility, so that the members of the Board of Management can work together effectively and professionally.
- e. Remunerations, stipends, appointment and dismissals of CEO and members of the Board of Management are decided by Board of Supervisors.
- f. No member of the Board of Management shall have any Qualifying Holding in the bank of which he/she is a member.
- **g.** Shareholders of the bank, their representatives, and close relatives cannot serve on the Board of Management of the bank.

## Board of Management's Qualifications and Eligibility

- a. A person shall be eligible to serve as a member of the Board of Management of the bank if he or she:
- b. Is a Fit and Proper Person;
- c. Meets conditions stipulated under Article 58 of the Banking Law of Afghanistan

## **Board of Management's Roles and Responsibilities**

Board of Management contribute substantially to a bank's Sound corporate governance through personal conduct.

Board of Management is responsible for delegating duties to staff and should establish a Management structure that promotes accountability and transparency throughout the bank.

Board of Management should provide the Board of Supervisors with the information it Needs to carry out its responsibilities, supervise Board of Management and assess the Quality of senior management's performance. In this regard, Board of Management Should keep the Board of Supervisors regularly and adequately informed of material Matters, including:

- 1. Preparation and developing of business strategy, risk strategy/risk appetite;
- 2. The bank's performance and financial condition:





- 3. Breaches of risk limits or compliance rules;
- 4. Internal control failures;
- 5. Legal or regulatory concerns; and
- 6. Issues raised as a result of banks whistle blowing procedures.

## 5.3.4 Compensation and Remuneration Committee

Compensation and Remuneration Committee is an integral part of Ghazanfar Bank's governance structure and organization to oversee the compensation system's design and operation on behalf of the Board of Supervisors. The Committee should:

- 1. Be constituted in a way that it exercises competent and independent judgment on compensation policies, practices and incentives.
- 2. Demonstrate that its decisions are consistent with an assessment of the bank's financial conditions and future prospects.
- 3. Work closely with the bank's Risk Committee in the evaluation of the incentives created by the compensation system.
- 4. Ensure that the bank's compensation policy complies with the guidance of the Basel committee.
- Ensure that compensation policy is reviewed, if appropriate externally commissioned, and is conducted independently of management.
- 6. Ensure that remuneration is determined independently of other business areas and is adequate to attract qualified and experienced staff.
- 7. Ensure that performance measures should be based principally on the achievement of the objectives of their functions.

16

Board of Supervisors may appoint such other committees as felt necessary for the effective functioning of the bank.

## 5.4. Islamic Banking Window

Along with conventional banking services, Ghazanfar Bank is engaged in Islamic Banking activities. Islamic Banking Window of GB, offers a variety of services in compliance with Islamic Sharia. The Islamic Banking Window is headed by Chief Islamic banking Officer who is responsible to run Islamic functions of the Bank and to execute Shari'ah Board resolutions in its true spirit and soul. The Islamic Banking Window has its own segregated functioning and staff present in all Banking components such as Operation department, Finance department, Credit department, Risk department, compliance

866 Sher Pur Main Rd. Kabul-Afghanistan

+93 (0)202101111 + +93 (0)202105555
info@ghzanfarbank.com | www.ghazanfarbank.com



department and Branches who reports to Islamic Banking Department in issues related to Shari'ah compliance. The Islamic Banking is operating with Shari'ah governance structure and is guided by a set of different Islamic Banking policies duly vetted by Shari'ah Board and is in compliance with AAOIFI standards and Central Bank Islamic Banking law.

#### 5.4.1 Shari'ah Board

The Bank has its Shari'ah Board constituted by three Islamic scholars including a foreigner as well duly approved by Da Afghanistan Bank. The Islamic Banking Department reports to Shari'ah Board in respect of Shari'ah compliance issues and to obtain resolutions/ Fatwas for Islamic Banking Window operations. The Bank's Shari'ah Board is the highest authority in making the final decision on matters related to the Shari'ah in the Bank's course of operation. Therefore, the Bank's Shari'ah Board is responsible for the views, decisions and advices provided to the Bank and is expected to deliberate every arising issue extensively and in-depth before arriving at any decision. The Shari'ah Board ensures that all the products and services and related agreements/ contracts, structure, process flows, product manuals, marketing advertisements, sales illustrations and brochures etc. of bank, are in conformity with the rules and principles of Shari'ah.

#### 5.4.2 Shari'ah Advisor:

The Bank has dedicated position of Shari'ah Advisor appropriately filled by an official well versed in Shari'ah and duly approved by Da Afghanistan Bank. The Shari'ah Advisor is regularly seated position, who is consulted by Islamic Banking department in day to day issues related to Shari'ah and seek advises accordingly.

# Clause 6: Fiscal Year Reports

- 1. The financial year of the bank shall begin on the first day of January and end on the last day of December.
- 2. Ghazanfar Bank shall maintain accounts and records, and prepare quarterly and annual financial statements, adequate to reflect in accordance with international accounting standards or international financial reporting standards, their respective operations and financial condition, in accordance with related regulations prescribed by Da Afghanistan Bank. The financial statements shall reflect the operations and financial condition of its subsidiaries both on an individual and on a consolidated basis.





Ghazanfar bank shall appoint an independent external auditor with qualifications and experience acceptable to Da Afghanistan Bank.

- 1: External auditors shall perform the following tasks in compliance with standards established by related regulation.
  - advise the bank on maintaining proper accounting systems and procedures;
  - advise the bank on the effectiveness of its internal controls and risk management systems and procedures;
  - prepare and present to the board of supervisors of the bank an annual report together with an external auditor's opinion as to whether the financial statements present a full and fair view of the financial condition of the bank in accordance with the provisions of the banking Law;
- 2. The board of supervisors shall, not later than three months' after the end of each financial year, submit to its general meeting of shareholders:
  - its audited consolidated financial statements, together with the report of its external auditors for that financial year; and
  - the total number of meetings of the board of supervisors and its committees held during the most recently-completed financial year and the number of those meetings attended by each member; and
  - Such other information as may be prescribed by regulations of the Da Afghanistan Bank.
- 3. Ghazanfar bank shall, within 15 days after the general meeting of the bank's shareholders approves the audited financial statements:
- provide such financial statements, external auditor's report, and corporate governance report referred to in paragraph 1 of this Article to Da Afghanistan Bank; and
- publish such statements and reports in an official newspaper of general circulation in Afghanistan.
- 4. In addition Ghazanfar bank shall:
  - exhibit the financial statements and reports referred to in paragraph above in a conspicuous place in each of its offices and branches, in Afghanistan or abroad, and keep it so exhibited throughout the following twelve months;
  - Provide copies of the financial statements and reports referred to in above paragraph to any person requesting such copies, for a reasonable fee, not exceeding the administrative costs of providing such services.







5. If a material error becomes evident in any report which has been published under the prevalent articles of Da Afghanistan Laws and Regulations, shall be promptly informed of the error and a corrected report shall be issued and published.

#### 6.1 Net Profit for Fiscal Year:

Board of Supervisors should make decisions concerning capital distributions, subject to requirements of the Law and regulations of Da Afghanistan Bank, and what amount of the net profit of the bank shall be transferred to any reserve of the bank;

**6.2 Legal Reserves:** Ghazanfar Bank shall form reserves, as required in order to deal with general risks to which the bank is exposed, and cover possible losses arising from conducting its activities. The size of such reserves and the ways of their formation, maintenance and usages hall be prescribed in related regulation of Da Afghanistan Bank may require a bank that conducts risky business operations or that shows an unusually high increase in their exposure to various types of risks, to establish higher obligatory reserves.

## 6.3 Profit Distribution (Capital Distribution):

- a. The Board of Supervisors will make decisions concerning capital distributions, subject to requirements of the Banking Law of Afghanistan and Regulation of Da Afghanistan Bank.
- b. Ghazanfar Bank will not decrease its capital by repurchasing shares or engaging in a capital distribution without the prior written authorization from Da Afghanistan Bank.

#### Clause 7: Dissolution of the Bank

## 7.1 Liquidation

a. If the Commission determines that such person has failed or refused to comply With orders referred in the banking law or such other applicable laws of the country, it shall order the liquidation of the business of that person.

b. The liquidation shall be overseen by Da Afghanistan Bank in accordance Procedures determined by Da Afghanistan Bank.



c. In case of a liquidation, the proceeds of liquidation shall be used to pay expenses and other costs of the Commission and Da Afghanistan Bank, depositors and their personal creditors or creditors of the relevant business, in [that] order of.

## 7.2 Litigation

All matters of disputes and litigations shall be governed by the Laws prevalent in Afghanistan.

## Clause 8: Laws and Regulation

Bank is governed by prescribed Laws and regulations of Da Afghanistan Bank and of the Country and amendments wherever whenever enacted thereof.

We the Ghazanfar Bank shareholders, whose names and addresses are subscribed, are desirous of being formed into a company in pursuance of these by laws and article of association, and we respectively agree to take the number of shares in the capital of the said bank and respective names are:

Kailash Giri

Chairman of BoS

Signature:

Khisrow Fazli

Acting-CEO

Signature:

